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In the United States Court of Appeals
for the Ninth Circuit

No. 18243

National Labor Relations Board, petitioner

v.

J. R. Simplot Company, respondent

ON PETITION FOR ENFORCEMENT OF AN ORDER OF THE
NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD

BRIEF FOR THE NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS BOARD

JURISDICTION

This case is before the Court on the petition of the

National Labor Relations Board, pursuant to Section

10(e) of the National Labor Relations Act, as

amended (61 Stat. 136, 73 Stat. 519, 29 U.S.C. Sec.

151, et seq.),
1 for enforcement of its order issued

against respondent on August 17, 1962. The Board's

-decision and order (R. 80-89) 2
are reported at 138

NLRB No. 20. This Court has jurisdiction over this

proceeding, the unfair labor practice having occurred

at Heyburn, Idaho, where respondent operates a

1 The pertinent statutory provisions are reprinted, infra, pp.

22-25.

j

2 References to the pleadings, the decision and order of the

Board, the stipulated record, and other papers, reproduced as

Volume I, Pleadings,'' are designated "R."

(l)



starch plant, within this judicial circuit. No jurisdic-

tional issue is presented (R. 81).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

J. The Board's findings of fact

Briefly, the Board found that respondent violated

Section 8(a)(5) and (1) of the Act by admittedly

refusing to bargain collectively with the Union, 3

which had been certified by the Board ,as the bargain-

ing representative of all production and maintenance

employees in respondent's starch plant. The facts

pertaining to the representation and unfair labor

practice proceedings are as follows

:

A. The representation proceeding

On April 25, 1960, the Union initiated a representa-

tion proceeding before the Board 4 by filing a petition

for an election pursuant to Section 9(c) (1) of the Act

(R. 10). On March 9, 1961, the Board issued an

Amended Decision and Direction of Elections (R.

62-64), and the election was conducted pursuant

thereto on March 22, 1961, in two separate voting

groups (R. 81-82) 5
. The Union lost the election by a

3 American Federation of Grain Millers, AFL-CIO, herein

called the Union.
4 An earlier petition was dismissed as not timely filed because

respondent did not have a representative and substantial com-

plement of employees in the proposed unit (R. 10).
5 Group A, the unit with which the instant case is concerned,

consisted of all production and maintenance employees at re-

spondent's starch plant in Heyburn, Idaho, while Group B com-

prised employees at the processing plant, packing, sorting sheds,

and other employees of the starch plant (R. 82).



vote of 3 to 7,
6 and thereafter filed timely objections

to conduct affecting the results of the election (R. 22-

23).
7 Following an investigation the Regional Direc-

tor, on June 7, 1961, issued a report on objections in

which he recommended that the election be set aside

(R. 25-30).

The Regional Director found that respondent had

admittedly effectuated a ten cent hourly wage increase

for all employees in the voting units on February 20,

1961 (R, 26 ).
8 Secondly he found that respondent

had, between February 15, 1961, and the date of the

election, "* * * addressed hand bulletins, correspond-

ence and questionnaires to its employees in which it

pointed out (a) Employer's intent 'to give employees

the same fair and equitable treatment insofar as job

6 The Union also lost the election in Group B, receiving 216

votes, with 20 cast for the Teamsters and 336 against both

organizations. The Teamsters received no votes from the em-

ployees in Group A (R. 82).
7 As summarized by the Board, the four objections were that,

prior to the election, respondent interfered with its employees

by (1) granting wage increases, (2) promising the employees

hey would get anything the Union got the employees at the

)ther, unionized, plants of the Company, (3) holding captive

iiudience meetings on the day prior to the election, and (4)

putting on "a terrific antiunion campaign for several days just

)rior to the election, with promises of things they would do for

hem if they voted 'no union' " (R. 82-83).
8 On September 26, 1961, a trial examiner found, on charges

iled by the Union on April 20, 1961, that respondent had vio-

ated Section 8(a) (2) and (1) of the Act by establishing and
lominating a Workmen's Committee, but had not violated Sec-

ion 8(a)(1) in effectuating the wage increase. The recom-

lended order of the Trial Examiner became final under Section

3(c) of the Act, without Board consideration of the merits,

nee no exceptions were filed to the Intermediate Report (R.

2) . See Argument, infra, pp. 14-15.



classifications, local conditions and type of operations

permit' regardless of union affiliation, (b) specifically

invited employees' attention to the identity between

specific conditions of employment at the Heyburn
Plant and those at plants covered by Petitioner's col-

lective bargaining agreements 9 and (c) utilized a

local newspaper to advertise increased benefits negoti-

ated at Union plants of the Employer, announced that

those benefits could not be put into effect at subject

plant by reason of the impending NLRB election, and

then, contrary to the announcement, it did make the

same increases effective at Heyburn" (R. 27).

Based on his conclusions with respect to the first

two objections, as well as objection 4,
10

the Regional

Director recommended that the elections be set aside,

and that new elections be conducted (R. 30).

In its exceptions to the Regional Director's report,

respondent did not dispute the fact that it had granted

the wage increase, but asserted that the company de-

sired to maintain, if possible, a standard wage rate in

9 The Union had existing agreements in respect to employees

at respondent's plants located in Shelley, Idaho and Caldwell,

Idaho (R. 10-11,22).
10 The Regional Director rejected the third objection (captive

audience meetings), and sustained the fourth objection (anti-

union campaign) (R. 29, 82-83). In its Supplemental Deci-i

sion, Order and Direction of Second Election the Board agreed

with the findings of the Regional Director with respect to Ob-

jection 3, but expressly did not pass on Objection 4 and tht

question whether respondent's conduct considered as a whole

created an atmosphere which rendered the expression of free

choice impossible (R. 63).



all of its plants, and also desired to be competitive

with wage rates established by other firms in the area.

Respondent stated that since negotiations with the

Union in its other two plants were reaching their con-

clusion, it decided to put into effect the same wage

rates at Heyburn as were established at its other

plants. Respondent also cited its concern with the

Board's delay in ordering an election as a factor be-

hind the February 20 wage increase (R. 31-32).

Respondent excepted to the Regional Director's con-

clusions on Objections 2, 3, and 4 "for the reason that

such conclusions are not based upon the facts sur-

rounding the conduct of the election, and further that

ithe conclusions of the Regional Director are inferen-

tial by their own admission, and the statements

therein contain so much sham, irrelevant, and re-

dundant matter that they should be disregarded in

:heir entirety by the Board." (R. 32).

On August 16, 1961, the Board issued a Supple-

mental Decision, Order and Direction of Second Elec-

ion (R. 62-64). The Board, agreeing with the

Regional Director's conclusions, found that the con-

duct with respect to Objections 1 and 2 "constituted

promises of and granting of benefits which were cal-

fulated to interfere with the election and formed a

>asis for setting it aside." (R. 63). As noted, the

>oard did not pass upon the fourth objection.

The Union received a majority of the valid votes

ast in Group A in the second election held October

668530—62-



19, 1961,
11 and was certified as bargaining representa-

tive on October 27, 1961 (R. 84).

B. The unfair labor practice proceeding

On December 26, 1961, the Union requested re-

spondent to meet with it for the purpose of negoti-

ating an agreement covering the employees which it

had been certified to represent. On January 4, 1962,

respondent declined, and has since then continually

refused to meet and bargain with the*Union (R. 13).

Following unfair labor practice charges filed by the

Union and the issuance of a complaint, the parties

entered into a stipulation waiving a hearing and pre-

senting the case to the Board for decision upon the

stipulation and certain specified documents incorpo-

rated therein (R. 9). The Board, upon a considera-

tion of the stipulated record and the briefs filed,

issued its Decision and Order, rejecting respondent's

defense that the Board had arbitrarily and caprici-

ously set aside the first election without first ordering

a hearing on the Regional Director's report on objec-

tions and respondent's exceptions to that report (R.

84).

II. The Board's conclusion and order

The Board concluded that respondent's refusal tc

bargain was violative of Section 8(a) (5) and (1) oj

the Act (R. 86). The Board ordered the Company to

cease and desist from the unfair labor practice found

upon request to bargain collectively with the Union, ant

to post the customary appropriate notice (R. 87).

11 The Union did not receive a majority in Voting Group "*

(R. 84).



ARGUMENT

The Board acted reasonably and within its permissible dis-

cretion in setting aside the first election and conducting a

second election within a year, and therefore properly found

that respondent violated Section 8 (a) (5) and (1) of the

Act by refusing to bargain with the certified bargaining

representative of its employees

The sole issue in this case is the propriety of the

Board's action in setting aside the first election held

on March 22, 1961. Respondent has attempted to

justify its admitted refusal to bargain with the Union

upon the ground that the Board arbitrarily and capri-

ciously set aside the first election without first ordering

a hearing on the Regional Director's report on objec-

tions and respondent's exceptions thereto. Presum-

ably, respondent's claim is that the second election,

upon which the certification of the Union is based,

was held in disregard of Section 9(c)(3) of the Act

which provides that "no election shall be directed in

any bargaining unit or subdivision within which, in

the preceding twelve-month period, a valid election

shall have been held." [Emphasis supplied.] Sec-

tion 9(c)(3) would be applicable only if the Board

erred in its determination that the first election was

invalid. For the reasons discussed below, we submit

that the certification issued by the Board in the repre-

sentation case was valid and proper in all respects,

and hence conclusive on the issue of the Union's rep-

resentative status. It follows, accordingly, that re-

spondent's admitted refusal to bargain was violative

of Section 8(a) (5) and (1) of the Act,



A. The decision to set aside an election is a matter resting within the

discretion of the Board

The Supreme Court has made it clear that, "Con-

gress has entrusted the Board with a wide degree of

discretion in establishing the procedure and safe-

guards necessary to insure the fair and free choice

of bargaining representatives by employees."

N.L.R.B. v. A. J. Tower Co., 329 U.S. 324, 330. Thus

it is "* * * for the Board and not the courts to exer-

cise the discretion as to * * * whether or not [an]

election should be set aside for irregularities in proce-

dure. For the courts to substitute their judgment for

that of the Board in such matters would be for them

to undertake an impossible task and entirely to mis-

conceive their function under the statute." N.L.R.B.

v. National Plastic Products Co., 175 F. 2d 755, 758

(C.A. 4). This settled principle has been unequiv-

ocally endorsed by this Court. Foreman & Clark,

Inc. v. N.L.R.B., 215 F. 2d 396, cert, denied, 348 U.S.

887; International Telephone & Telegraph Corp. v.

N.L.R.B., 294 F. 2d 393, 395. Accord: N.L.R.B. v.

Waterman S. S. Corp., 309 U.S. 206, 226; N.L.R.B. v.

Himtsville Mfg. Co., 203 F. 2d 430, 434 (C.A. 5);

Olson Rug Co. v. N.L.R.B., 260 F. 2d 255, 256 (C.A.

7).

Consequently, the standard to be employed in a

determination of the propriety of the Board's action

in setting aside the first election is not whether the

Board was "right" or "wrong" in its decision, but

whether or not it acted arbitrarily and capriciously.

The Third Circuit has cogently observed that "some-

thing more than error is necessary to spell out arbi-



9

traiy or capricious action." X.L.it.B. v. ,/. W. Rex

Co., 243 F. 2d 356, 358. We submit, and shall dem-

onstrate below, that the Board's action was not arbi-

trary or capricious but, to the contrary, was com-

pletely reasonable and proper.

B. The Board did not deprive respondent of any constitutional or statutory

rights by not ordering a hearing on its exceptions to the Regional Direc-

tor's report on objections

Respondent, in its argument before the Board in

the unfair labor practice proceeding, contended that

the Board's action in setting aside the election with-

out first ordering a hearing deprived it of due process

of law under the Fifth Amendment; respondent's

premise was that the Board's findings in the repre-

sentation proceeding were tantamount to finding it

guilty of conduct which amounted to unfair labor

practices with the sanction of setting aside the

election.

It is readily apparent that respondent has mis-

conceived the nature and purpose of the Board's

representation proceedings. The entire proceeding

leading to certification is investigatory in nature,
: "

conducted so as to enable the Board to discharge its

statutory duty; it is in no sense an adversary pro-

12 Section 9(d). which provides for judicial review of certi-

fications terms this proceeding an investigation. It provides:

"Whenever an order of the Board made pursuant to Section

10(c) is based in whole or in part upon facts certified fol-

lowing an investigation pursuant to subsection (c) of this

section and there is a petition for the enforcement or review

of such order, such certification and the record of such investi-

gation shall be included in the transcript of the entire record

required to be filed under section 10(e) or 10(f) * * * ' [Em-
phasis supplied.]



10

ceeding. "The preliminary investigation and the

hearing in the representation proceeding are not con-

tentions litigation; not even litigation, bnt investi-

gation. It is made on behalf of the Board by members

of its staff. The outcome is merely a certification of

a bargaining representative." N.L.R.B. v. Botany

Worsted Mills, 133 F. 2d 876, 882 (C.A. 3), cert,

denied, 319 U.S. 751.

No complaint is issued in representation proceed-

ings, and a Board order directing a new election con-

tains no sanction against anyone. The employer's

interest in representation proceedings under Section

9 of the Act is "very unsubstantial." N.L.R.B. v.

National Mineral Co., 134 F. 2d 424, 426 (C.A. 7),

cert, den., 320 U.S. 753. As this Court aptly put it,

"An employer has little if any voice or interest in the

selection of his employees' bargaining unit." Fore-

man d- Clark, Inc. v. N.L.R.B., 215 F. 2d 396, 406, cert,

den., 348 U.S. 887. Hence respondent's contention

that the Board set aside the election as a sanction

against the Company is patently without foundation.

Respondent's bald assertion that the Board's findings

in the representation proceeding were tantamount to

finding it "guilty of unfair labor practices" is speci-

ous, and does not require extended discussion.
13

Simi-

13 The Board properly pointed out that it in no way adjudi-

cated that respondent had committed an unfair labor practice i

by setting aside the election on grounds which could, in an ad-

judicative proceeding, be a basis for an unfair labor practice)

finding (R. 85). Indeed, respondent's contention on this point

is belied by the fact that, after an appropriate hearing on

whether or not it had violated Section 8(a)(1) of the Act by
granting the wage increase, a trial examiner concluded that re-

spondent had not committed an unfair labor practice. See

argument, Infra, pp. 14-15.
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larly, respondent's argument that the Board, in

setting' aside the election, deprived it of the right to

express its views as permitted by Section 8(c) of the

Act
14 and the First Amendment is without merit.

"The Constitution protects procedural regularity, not

as an end in itself, but as a means of defending sub-

stantive interests." Fay v. Douds, 172 F. 2d 720, 725

(C.A. 2).

Parties are entitled to a hearing as a matter of right

in all unfair labor practice proceedings instituted

under Section 8 of the Act. In representation pro-

ceedings, however, the only mandatory hearing is that

which is held prior to the election, pursuant to Sec-

tion 9(c)(1), to determine whether or not a question

of representation exists.
15 Indeed, Section 5(6) of

the Administrative Procedure Act expressly exempts

the certification of employee representatives (Section

9(c) of the National Labor Relations Act) from its

formal procedural requirements for a hearing.
16 "No-

where in the Act is there a specific requirement that

the Board conduct post-election hearings on objec-

14 The short answer to this contention is that Section 8(c)

applies only to evidence in unfair labor practice proceedings,

not in representation proceedings under Section 9 of the Act.

Section 8(c) provides: "The expressing of any views, argument,

pr opinion, or the dissemination thereof, * * * shall not consti-

tute or be evidence of an unfair labor practice under any of the

provisions of this Act, if such expression contains no threat of

reprisal or force or promise of benefit." (Emphasis supplied.)

Olearly, respondent's freedom of speech was not impinged.

Foreman <& Clark, Inc., v. N.L.R.B., 215 F. 2d 396, 408-109

(C.A. 9) , cert, den., 348 U.S. 887.

\

15 This hearing was held in the instant case on June 1, 1960

R. 10).
16 60 Stat. 239, 241 ; 5 U.S.C. 1001, 1004.
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tions." N.L.R.B. v. O.K. Van Storage, Inc., 297 F.

2d 74, 75 (C.A. 5).

Nevertheless, the Board's Rules and Regulations

provide that it may order a hearing on exeeptions to

the report on objections if it appears to the Board

that such exceptions raise substantial and material

factual issues.
17 Even a cursory reading of the per-

tinent rule discloses that it does not grant a hearing

on exceptions to the report on objections as a matter'

of right. It merely sets forth that the Board may, in

its discretion, order a hearing if it believes such

would prove fruitful in resolving substantial and

material questions of fact.

The need for such summary procedure is obvious.

"The opportunity for protracted delay of certification,

17 Section 102.69(d), Rules and Regulations and Statements

of Procedure, Series 8, as Amended, 1959, was the applicable

rule in force at the time respondent filed its exceptions to the

Regional Director's report on objections. That Section pro-

vided: "If exceptions are filed * * * to the report on * * *

objections * * * and it appears to the Board that such excep-

tions do not raise substantial and material factual issues with

respect to the conduct or results of the election, the Board may
decide the matter forthwith upon the record. * * * If it

appears to the Board that such exceptions raise substantial and

material factual issues, the Board may direct the regional di-
(

rector or other agent of the Board to issue and cause to be

served upon the parties a notice of hearing on said exceptions

before a hearing officer." Section 102.69 was amended, effec

tive with respect to any petition filed under Section 9 (c) oi

(e) of the Act on or after May 15, 1961, so as to grant th'

Regional Director authority to decide the case. The quotec

portion of Section 102.69(d) has been carried over intact t<

Section 102.69(e), Rules and Regulations and Statements o

Procedure, Series 8, as amended, 1962; 29 C.F.R. Sec. 102.69 (e)

(1962).
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of the results of representation elections which would

exist in the absence of reasonable conditions to the

allowance of a hearing on objections is apparent."

;
N.L.R.B. v. O.K. Van Storage, Inc., 297 P. 2d 74, 76

(C.A. 5). Consequently, the Board has uniformly

declined to direct a hearing on objections unless the

party supplies specific evidence of conduct which

prima facie would warrant setting aside the election.

This policy has received explicit judicial approval.

i N.L.R.B. v. O.K. Van Storage, Inc., supra; N.L.R.B.

i v. Vulcan Furniture Mfg. Corp., 214 F. 2d 369, 372

(C.A. 5), cert, den., 348 U.S. 873. Similarly, as the

Board stated, "the party excepting to the 'Report on

Objections' must supply specific evidence which prima

i facie would warrant the Board rejecting the Report."

(R. 85).
18

This, however, respondent failed to do.

C. The Board's decision to set aside the election without first ordering a

hearing was reasonable and proper

1. The reasons for not holding a hearing

Respondent, in its exceptions, did not raise any

substantial and material factual issues which needed

to be resolved by a hearing officer. In regard to the

first objection, it did not deny the fact that it had

effectuated the wage increase just prior to the elec-

tion. Respondent merely asserted its reasons for

granting the wage increase. A hearing on the first

objection would have served no useful purpose, since

18 See Olson Rug Co., 120 NLRB 366, 369, n. 3; International

Shoe Co., 123 NLRB 682, 684. This is also the Board's policy

regarding exceptions to the Regional Director's findings on chal-

lenged ballots. Great Eastern Color Lithographic Corp., 131

NLRB, 1141,n. 4.
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the Board was fully cognizant of respondent's argu-

ment as to why it had granted the increase. The

Board duly considered respondent's argument before

it concluded that the election should be set aside.

Respondent, in the 8(a)(5) proceeding endeavored

to show that the Board's action was arbitrary and ca-

pricious because, subsequent to the Board's sustaining

the two objections to the election, a trial examiner

concluded that respondent had not violated Section

8(a)(1) of the Act by granting the wage increase,

the gravamen of the first objection. The mere fact

that a trial examiner concluded that the granting of

the wage increase did not constitute an unfair labor

practice does not demonstrate that the Board acted

arbitrarily and capriciously in setting aside the elec-

tion. As the Board pointed out, even assuming ar-

guendo that the trial examiner considered the wage

increase against the entire background of the conduct

covered by the second objection, the Board is in no

way bound by that finding, which was never appealed

(R. 85, n. 9). Furthermore, the Board has long dif-

ferentiated between conduct which interferes with an

election and conduct which interferes with rights

guaranteed in Section 7 of the Act. The Board ex-

plained in Hicks-Hayward Co., 118 NLRB 695, n. 1:

The Board has heretofore recognized a distinc-

tion between the two types of interference and

has held that the criteria applied in a repre-

sentation proceeding to determine whether cer-

tain alleged misconduct interfered with an elec-

tion need not necessarily be identical to those

employed in testing whether an unfair laboi



15

practice was committed. * * * We see no

valid reason for departure from the precedent
* * * and finding * * * that conduct which

interferes with a free election necessarily con-

stitutes a violation of Section 8(a)(1) of the

Act.

There are numerous cases wherein the Board has set

aside elections because of conduct which would not

constitute an unfair labor practice.
10

Respondent, in its exceptions, made no attempt to

controvert the remaining objections. Its flat asser-

tion that the Regional Director's conclusions "are not

based upon the facts surrounding the conduct of the

election, * * * are inferential by their owtl admission,

md * * * contain so much sham, irrelevant, and re-

lundant matter that they should be disregarded in

heir entirety by the Board" (R. 32), certainly does

lot raise substantial and material factual issues, and

loes not meet the Board's prima facie test.

In sum, respondent's exceptions did not raise sub-

stantial and material factual issues, as required by the

3oard's Rules and Regulations, so as to warrant a

learing, nor did respondent present specific evidence

vhich prima facie would warrant rejection of the

legional Director's report, as the Board has con-

istently required in past cases. Hence respondent

^as not entitled to a hearing on its exceptions. This

Jourt observed in Foreman & Clark, Inc. v. N.L.R.B.,

15 F. 2d 396, 407, cert, den., 348 U.S. 887, that "there

i

19 E.g., General Shoe Corp., 77 NLRB 124, 126; Am-O-Krome
\o., 92 NLRB 893; BeWs Department Store, 98 NLRB 280;

[imliton, 115 NLRB 65, 66-67; General Cable Corp., 117

LRB 573, 574.
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is ' great latitude ' accorded to the Board both as to reme-

dies and as to procedure—including the holding of hear-

ings—relating to elections and other matters." We
submit that the Board was well within this "great lati-

tude" in its determination to set aside the election

without first ordering a hearing on respondent's excep-

tions to the Regional Director's report on objections.

2. The reasons for setting aside the election

As the Fourth Circuit said in N.L*R.B. v. Shirling-

ton Supermarket Inc., 224 F. 2d 649, 652, cert, denied,

350 U.S. 914, "The question before us is, not whether

the action of the employer may be condemned as an

unfair labor practice, but whether it furnished suffi-

cient groimd for the action of the Board in settingi

aside the election." This Court in N.L.B.B. v. Hoiccil

Chevrolet Co., 204 F. 2d 79, 86, affirmed 346 U.S. 482,

has similarly noted that "The processing of a repre-*

sentation petition, however, is a matter in which the

decisions to be made relate to policies which Congress

has in general committed to the discretion of the

Board."

Tested by these criteria, it is plain that the Board's

determination to set aside the election was a proper

exercise of its discretion to determine the fairness of

representation elections. For purposes of evaluating

the Board's determination, the " facts" set forth in

respondent's exceptions to the Regional Director's re-

port may be accepted as true. Viewing them together

i

with the uncontroverted facts as found by the Re

gional Director, the Board found that the conduct o^,

respondent during the period between the Board'.
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Direction of Elections and the elections "constituted

promises of and granting of benefits which were calcu-

lated to interfere with the election and formed a basis

for setting it aside" (R. 63, 85).

The first objection found meritorious concerned the

granting of the wage increase during- the critical

period. The Board found, and nothing in respon-

dent's exceptions even purports to contradict, that on

February 20, 1961,
J0 respondent gave a 10-cent hourly

ivage increase to the employees in the voting units,

idvising the employees of this action in a bulletin

posted conspicuously at the Company's premises the

iext clay. Neither of the participating unions was

•onsultecl about the wage increase, nor did they

icquiesce in any manner to its being granted. The

ncrease had not previously been announced to any

mployees, nor was it given pursuant to any estab-

ished policy of granting annual or periodic increases.

Respondent's exceptions state that bargaining negoti-

ations with the successful union at two other plants

)f the Company were "reaching a conclusion" early

n February, and that the Company desired to main-

ain a standard wage rate in all plants, and also de-

ired to be competitive with wage rates established by

he competing plants in the area. Respondent neither

tated in its exceptions, nor offered by way of affidavit

»r in any other manner, facts to support its assertion

hat competitive rates were such as to create a situa-

ion requiring an immediate wage increase. The pic-

ure thus presented is that of a Company which was

20 The Board's Direction of Elections issued February 15,

361, and the elections were conducted March 22, 1961.
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just concluding its bargaining negotiations at other

plants giving a wage increase to employees at a plant

where elections were pending, and announcing the in-

crease shortly after the Board directed the elections.

Four days after this direction the company success-

fully concluded its negotiations with the Union and

instituted a wage increase at its other two plants (R.

10-11). Respondent then, even though it had full

knowledge that the elections would be held shortly,

announced that the wage increase 'would apply at

Heyburn as well as its other plants; just five days

had elapsed between the Board's Direction of Elec-

tions at Heyburn and the granting of the increase.

The Board was amply justified in these circumstances

in concluding that the wage increase was "calculated'

to interfere with the election." Accepting as axio-

matic that an employer would desire to maintain a

standard wage rate in all plants, it is hard to conceive

that this "desire" is automatically equated to the kind

of pressing need that permits an employer to grant

wage increases despite the imminence of an election.

Cf. Detroit Aluminum & Brass Corp., 107 NLRB
1411, 1413-1415; Baird-Ward Printing Co., Inc., 108

NLRB 815, 818-819. No great, if any, hardship could

have resulted here had the employer merely waited a

few more wreeks until the elections had been conducted

before satisfying its desire to equalize the wages.

This is also, as the facts show, not the situation

where normal periodic increases, customarily given,

are bestowed during the pre-election period. Here

too the Board has created an exception to the general

rule that wage increases during the immediate pre-
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election period constitute interference with the elec-

tion and preclude a free choice by the employees

i involved. See e.g., Spmgne Electric Co. of Wis., Inc.,

; 112 NLRB 165, 166 ; Baird-Ward Printing Co., Inc.,

, supra; Universal Butane Company, Inc., 106 NLRB
1101, 1102-1103. In short, there is nothing in the cir-

cumstances here to have warranted the Board depart-

ing from its general rule.

The propriety of the Board's conclusion with

respect to the first objection is emphasized by the facts

concerning the second objection.
21 The Regional Di-

rector found that between the Board's direction and

:

the elections respondents distributed to the employees

• involved bulletins, correspondence, and questionnaires,

, all emphasizing that employees at the Heyburn plant

would receive any of the benefits won by the em-

ployees at the other two unionized plants, regardless

of their union affiliation. Indeed, the Company an-

nounced the wage increases at the other plants in a

!
local newspaper, stating that because of the impending

i

Board-election it could not put the increases into

effect at Heyburn. Yet, as we have seen, respondent

did put the increase into effect. Manifestly respon-

dent was aware of its obligations, and could reason-

;ably have deferred any action pursuant to its desire

to equalize rates until after the elections were con-

ducted. Manifestly also, the promises of benefits,

taken together with the actual granting of the wage

increase, constituted a reasonable basis for the Board's

21 As noted above respondent's exceptions to the Regional

Director's report do not take issue with the facts as found by
the Regional Director relating to this objection.
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determination to set aside the elections and conduct

new ones.

In sum, the Board's determination to set aside the

elections was reasonable, and was under no circum-

stances arbitrary or capricious so as to warrant a re-

versal of the Board's action within its concededly

large measure of discretion in the area of representa-

tion proceedings. Nor was there any basis, in the

circumstances of this case, for requiring a hearing

on the objections, for respondent's exceptions to the

Regional Director's report did not raise any factual

questions necessitating such a hearing. It follows,

accordingly, that respondent's admitted refusal to

honor the certification was in violation of Section 8

(a) (5) and (1) of the Act.

CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated, it is respectfully submitted

that a decree should issue enforcing the Board's order

in full.

Stuart Rothman,
General Counsel,

Dominick L. Manoli,

Associate General Counsel,

Marcel Mallet-Prevost,

Assistant General Counsel,

Melvin J. Welles,

Melvin H. Reifin,

Attorneys,

National Labor Relations Board.

December 1962.
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APPENDIX

The relevant provisions of the National Labor Rela-

tions Act, as amended (61 Stat. 136, 73 Stat. 519, 29

U.S.C., Sees. 151, et seq.) are as follows:

RIGHTS OF EMPLOYEES

Sec. 7. Employees shall have the right to self-

organization, to form, join, or assist labor or-

ganizations, to bargain collectively through rep-

resentatives of their own choosing, and to

engage in other concerted activities for the

purpose of collective bargaining or other mu-
tual aid or protection, and shall also have the

right to refrain from any or all of such activi-

ties except to the extent that such right may be

affected by an agreement requiring membership
in a labor organization as a condition of em-
ployment as authorized in section 8(a)(3).

UNFAIR LABOR PRACTICES

Sec. 8. (a) It shall be an unfair labor prac-

tice for an employer

—

(1) to interfere with, restrain, or coerce em-

ployees in the exercise of the rights guaranteed
in section 7

;

*****
(5) to refuse to bargain collectively with the

representatives of his employees, subject to the

provisions of section 9(a).

REPRESENTATIVES AND ELECTIONS

Sec. 9. (a) Representatives designated or se-

lected for the purposes of collective bargaining

by the majority of the employees in a unit ap-

(22)
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propriate for such purposes, shall be the exclu-

sive representatives of all the employees in

such unit for the purposes of collective bargain-
ing in respect to rates of pay, wages, hours of

employment, or other conditions of employ-
ment:*****

(c)(1) Whenever a petition shall have been
filed, in accordance with such regulations as

may be prescribed by the Board * * * the

Board shall investigate such petition and if

it has reasonable cause to believe that a ques-
tion of representation affecting commerce exists

shall provide for an appropriate hearing upon
due notice.*****

(d) Whenever an order of the Board made
pursuant to section 10(c) is based in whole or
in part upon facts certified following an investi-

gation pursuant to subsection (c) of this section

and there is a petition for the enforcement or

review of such order, such certification and the

record of such investigation shall be included
in the transcript of the entire record required
to be filed under section 10(e) or 10(f), and
thereupon the decree of the court enforcing,

modifying, or setting aside in whole or in part
the order of the Board shall be made and en-

tered upon the pleadings, testimony, and pro-
ceedings set forth in such transcript.

PREVENTION OF UNFAIR LABOR PRACTICES

Sec. 10. (a) The Board is empowered, as

hereinafter provided, to prevent any person
from engaging in any unfair labor practice

(listed in section 8) affecting commerce. This
power shall not be affected by any other means
of adjustment or prevention that has been or
may be established by agreement, law, or other-

wise: * * *
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(b) Whenever it is charged that any person

has engaged in or is engaging in any snch un-

fair labor practice, the Board, or any agent or

agency designated by the Board for such pur-

poses, shall have power to issue and cause to be

served upon such person a complaint stating

the charges in that respect, and containing a

notice of hearing before the Board or a member
thereof, or before a designated agent or agency,

at a place therein fixed, not less than five days

after the serving of said complaint: Provided,

That no complaint shall issue, based upon any
unfair labor practice occurring more than six

months prior to the filing of the charge with the

Board and the service of a copy thereof upon
the person against whom such charge is made,
unless the person aggrieved thereby was pre-

vented from filing such charge by reason of

service in the armed forces, in which event the

six-month period shall be computed from the

day of his discharge. Any such complaint may
be amended by the member, agent, or agency
conducting the hearing or the Board in its dis-

cretion at any time prior to the issuance of an

order based thereon.*****
(e) The Board shall have power to petition

any court of appeals of the United States, * *

within any circuit * * * wherein the unfaii

labor practice in question occurred or wherein

such person resides or transacts business, foi

the enforcement of such order and for appro-

priate temporary relief or restraining order

and shall file in the court the record in the

proceedings, as provided in section 2112 of title

28, United States Code. Upon the filing a*

such petition, the court shall cause notict

thereof to be served upon such person, am
thereupon shall have jurisdiction of the pre

ceeding and of the question determined therein

and shall have power to grant such temporar
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relief or restraining order as it deems just and
proper, and to make and enter a decree en-

forcing, modifying, and enforcing as so modi-

fied, or setting aside in whole or in part the

order of the Board. No objection that has not

been urged before the Board, its member, agent,

or agency, shall be considered by the court, un-

less the failure or neglect to urge such objec-

tion shall be excused because of extraordinary
circumstances. The findings of the Board with

respect to questions of fact if supported by sub-

stantial evidence on the record considered as a

whole shall be conclusive. If either party shall

apply to the court for leave to adduce addi-

tional evidence and shall show to the satisfac-

tion of the court that such additional evidence
is material and that there were reasonable
grounds for the failure to adduce such evidence
in the hearing before the Board, its member,
agent, or agency, the court may order such ad-

ditional evidence to be taken before the Board,
its member, agent, or agency, and to be made a

part of the record * * * Upon the filing of

the record with it, the jurisdiction of the court
shall be exclusive and its judgment and decree
shall be final, except that the same shall be
subject to review by the * * * Supreme Court
of the United States upon writ of certiorari or
certification as provided in section 1254 of title

28.
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